
1 

MINUTES OF 
FAIRFAX COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 20, 2011 
                                       

                       
PRESENT: Walter L. Alcorn, Commissioner At-Large   
 Frank A. de la Fe, Hunter Mill District 
 Earl L. Flanagan, Mount Vernon District                       
 Janet R. Hall, Mason District 
 Suzanne F. Harsel, Braddock District  
 James R. Hart, Commissioner At-Large 
 John L. Litzenberger, Jr., Sully District 
 James T. Migliaccio, Lee District 
 Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Springfield District 
 Timothy J. Sargeant, Commissioner At-Large  
      
ABSENT: Jay P. Donahue, Dranesville District 
 Kenneth A. Lawrence, Providence District 

 
// 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:20 p.m., by Chairman Peter F. Murphy, Jr. in the Board 
Auditorium of the Fairfax County Government Center, 12000 Government Center Parkway, 
Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 
 
// 
 
COMMISSION MATTERS 
 
Commissioner Hart announced that the Planning Commission’s Environment Committee 
meeting, originally scheduled for Thursday, May 19, 2011, had been cancelled. 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Alcorn announced that the Planning Commission’s Tysons Corner Committee 
would meet in the Government Center on the following dates and said that everyone was 
welcome to attend. 
 

•  May 11, 2011 – 7:30 p.m., Board Conference Room – Briefing on the Tysons 
Partnership; 

 
•  May 18, 2011 – 7:00 p.m., Conference Rooms 2/3 – Briefing from County staff 

regarding the status of Plan implementation and discussion on Board Directives. 
 
// 
 
 
 



2 

COMMISSION MATTERS          April 20, 2011 
 
 
Commissioner Flanagan MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION DEFER THE 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR RZ/FDP 2011-MV-001 AND PCA 2002-MV-020, SUMMIT OAKS 
SECTION 2, LLC, TO A DATE CERTAIN OF JUNE 16, 2011. 
 
Commissioner Litzenberger seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
FSA-D96-50-2 – AT&T MOBILITY, 7305 Idylwood Drive  
  
Chairman Murphy MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION CONCUR WITH 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM FSA-D96-50-2, AT&T MOBILITY. 
 
Without objection, the motion carried unanimously with Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence 
absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
RZ 2010-HM-006 – SEKAS HOMES, LTD. (Decision Only) (The public hearing on this 
application was held on December 2, 2010. A verbatim transcript of the decision made is in the 
date file.) 
 
Commissioner de la Fe MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF RZ-2010-HM-006, SUBJECT TO THE 
PROFFERS DATED MARCH 14, 2011. 
 
Commissioners Hart and Alcorn seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 8-0-2 with 
Commissioners Hall and Murphy abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent 
from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE WAIVER OF THE PUBLIC 
FACILITIES MANUAL 5-FOOT WIDE SIDEWALK REQUIREMENT ALONG THE OLD 
COURTHOUSE ROAD FRONTAGE OF THE PROPERTY IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A 10-
FOOT WIDE TRAIL. 
 
Commissioner Hart seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 8-0-2 with Commissioners 
Hall and Murphy abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF THE MODIFICATION OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COUNTYWIDE TRAIL REQUIREMENT ALONG THE OLD 
COURTHOUSE ROAD FRONTAGE OF THE PROPERTY IN ORDER TO PROVIDE A 10-
FOOT WIDE TRAIL. 



3 

COMMISSION MATTERS          April 20, 2011 
 
 
Commissioner Hart seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 8-0-2 with Commissioners 
Hall and Murphy abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A DEVIATION OF THE TREE 
PRESERVATION TARGET IN FAVOR OF THAT SHOWN ON THE GDP. 
 
Commissioner Hart seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 8-0-2 with Commissioners 
Hall and Murphy abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
RZ 2009-BR-015/PCA C-083-02/SEA 87-A-086-02 – COLLEGE TOWN ASSOCIATES, LP 
(Decisions Only) (The public hearing on these applications was held on January 19, 2011. A 
verbatim transcript of the decisions made is in the date file.) 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF RZ 2009-BR-015, SUBJECT TO THE 
EXECUTION OF THE PROFFERS CONSISTENT WITH THOSE DATED APRIL 5, 2011.  
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE LOT AREA, 
LOT WIDTH, AND OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PROPERTY ZONED R-1 
TO PERMIT THE CONSOLIDATION OF THIS LOT INTO THE EXISTING SHOPPING 
CENTER SITE. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
APPROVAL OF PCA C-083-02, SUBJECT TO THE EXECUTION OF PROFFERS 
CONSISTENT WITH THOSE DATED APRIL 5, 2011.  
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF SEA 87-A-086-02, SUBJECT TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS CONTAINED IN ATTACHMENT 3 OF THE ADDENDUM 
DATED MARCH 23, 2011, TO INCLUDE A CHILDCARE CENTER PERMIT AND 
SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS FOR A FAST FOOD RESTAURANT, DRIVE-IN FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTION, SERVICE STATION WITH MINI-MART, AND AN INCREASE IN  



4 

COMMISSION MATTERS          April 20, 2011 
 
 
BUILDING HEIGHT, FROM 40 FEET UP TO A MAXIMUM OF 75 FEET, AND 
ASSOCIATED MODIFICATIONS TO SITE DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS.  
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS TO PROVIDE A 10-
FOOT MINIMUM DISTANCE ALONG THE FRONTAGE OF THE NORTHERN AND 
WESTERN PROPERTY LINES IN FAVOR OF THE LANDSCAPING SHOWN ON THE 
GDP/SEA PLAT. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Harsel MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND TO 
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING AND BARRIER REQUIREMENT ALONG THE WESTERN 
AND SOUTHERN PROPERTY LINES IN FAVOR OF THE LANDSCAPING SHOWN ON 
THE GDP/SEA PLAT. 
 
Commissioner de la Fe seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 with 
Commissioner Hall abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
// 
 
ORDER OF THE AGENDA 
 
Secretary Harsel noted that there was only one public hearing on the agenda: 
 
 1. SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION 
  
This agenda was accepted without objection. 
 
// 
 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION – 
Appl. under Sect. 9-533 of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a retail 
sales establishment-large. Located at 7940 Richmond Hwy. on 
approx.11.88 ac. of land zoned C-8, HC, and CRD. Tax Map 101-2 
((6)) A. LEE DISTRICT. PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
Greg Riegle, Esquire, McGuire Woods LLP, reaffirmed the affidavit dated March 21, 2011. 
There were no disclosures by Commission members. 



5 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Kelli Goddard-Sobers, Zoning Evaluation Division (ZED), Department of Planning and Zoning 
(DPZ), presented the staff report, a copy of which is in the date file.  She noted that staff 
recommended approval of the proposal. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Migliaccio, Ms. Goddard-Sobers said that if the 
applicant did not obtain the requested waivers from the Virginia Department of Transportation 
(VDOT), then the applicant would have to file a Special Exception Amendment (SEA). She said 
the median break the applicant was attempting to close was based on a recommendation from 
VDOT. She explained that if the applicant did not obtain SE approval, then the applicant would 
have to construct the facility at the recommended 0.5 floor area ratio (FAR) instead of the 
planned 0.28 FAR. Ms. Goddard-Sobers affirmed that the approximate area would cover 240,000 
square feet. 
 
Replying to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Ms. Goddard-Sobers affirmed that legal 
notices were sent to the property owners adjacent to the proposed site. She stated that she did not 
know if the applicant contacted the property owners of the surrounding community to discuss the 
proposal. She confirmed that the applicant had to secure an agreement with Wal-Mart for inter-
parcel access. Ms. Goddard-Sobers added that the applicant had been provided the deed for the 
easement on the Wal-Mart property and the proposal included a condition that required the 
applicant to provide documentation of the agreement with Wal-Mart. She confirmed that the 
agreement had to be submitted before site plan approval. 
 
In reply to questions from Commissioner Hart, Ms. Goddard-Sobers clarified that the stairway 
depicted in Development Condition Number 26 was meant to provide a barrier to discourage 
people from illegally crossing Richmond Highway. She affirmed that the stairway would help 
people from the nearby apartment buildings access the crosswalk. Ms. Goddard-Sobers said she 
was not aware that staff had ever required an applicant to provide a fence along the median strip 
and added that the condition would be subject to VDOT approval. She said the recommendation 
to require the fence came from the Lee District Supervisor’s Office. 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Hall, Ms. Goddard-Sobers affirmed that there were 
no requirements for the applicant to talk to the surrounding community about the proposal. 
Commissioner Migliaccio also affirmed that the proposal had been presented to the Lee District 
Land Use Committee several times over a two-year span. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan noted that there was a similar issue regarding pedestrians trying to cross 
Richmond Highway at the Loehmann’s Plaza intersection. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Ms. Goddard-Sobers stated that 
development proposals included certain development conditions that needed to be addressed 
prior to site plan approval. She said the facility would not be open until the SE was approved. 
Ms. Goddard-Sobers confirmed that the plan called for a left-turn lane at a signal and that drivers 
would have to make a U-turn to access the neighboring apartment complex.  
 
 



6 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Responding to additional questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Lou Ann Hutchins, Fairfax 
County Department of Transportation (FCDOT), affirmed that the applicant would be 
responsible for providing the necessary left-turn lane in order to make this U-turn and added that 
there were similar turn-lanes on the northbound section. Ms. Hutchins affirmed that FCDOT was 
comfortable with this provision and the timing on certain traffic lights would have to be adjusted. 
 
In reply to a question from Commissioner Migliaccio, Ms. Goddard-Sobers said that staff 
determined that it was safer for drivers to make U-turns rather than cross a median. 
 
Chairman Murphy called upon the applicant. 
 
Mr. Riegle explained that proposed transportation improvements in the proposal were in 
conformance with plans by VDOT to make Richmond Highway a through-traffic roadway. He 
said the applicant had shown staff and members of the surrounding communities design options 
that would keep the median break open. Mr. Riegle described the SE proposal as a means of 
meaningful revitalization for an area that was already earmarked for it. He explained that the 
revitalization covered a $25 million investment on the property, noting that it would add 
approximately 250 new jobs. He said that by-right zoning was an ongoing challenge in the 
Richmond Highway area and the proposed SE would allow for more efficient development. Mr. 
Riegle noted that the proposal would use half the FAR that could otherwise be built under the 
current zoning of the property. He said the proposal would improve the Level of Service at a 
critical intersection through development conditions geared towards traffic mitigation. He listed 
enhanced stormwater management facilities, green building policies, and greater certainty in 
terms of design architecture and landscaping as potential benefits for this proposal. Mr. Riegle 
said the applicant had conducted outreach to the surrounding communities and had the support of 
organizations such as the Land Use and Transportation Committees of the Mount Vernon 
Council of Citizens Associations, Southeast Fairfax Development Corporation, and Mount 
Vernon Chamber of Commerce. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Migliaccio, Mr. Riegle said that the property 
currently had no stormwater management and the applicant was committing to a 20-percent 
phosphorous removal and a 20-percent increase in volume management. He stated that the 
proposal had development conditions that committed LEED certification for the building in 
compliance with green building policies. He added that all the exterior building materials would 
be recyclable. He noted that the initiative had procedural protections of the escrows that were 
standard with green building practices. 
 
Replying to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Riegle said he did not know how long 
the median near the Spring Garden Apartment Project had been available. He stated that the 
applicant was willing to explore keeping the median open, but VDOT would have the final 
decision. He affirmed that the proposal could still meet the necessary left-turn demands. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant stated that he would abstain from voting on the recommendation to keep 
the median open because he was a member of the Mount Vernon-Lee Chamber Board of 
Directors. 



7 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Mr. Riegle stated that the applicant was 
relying on the localized experience of the citizens to decide how to handle the median issue 
around the Richmond Highway crosswalk. He described the proposed stairs as a means to 
channel pedestrians to appropriate crossing areas. Mr. Riegle said that the applicant had an 
agreement with Wal-Mart regarding the connecting roads between the properties, noting that 
there was an easement between the two properties. He said that the applicant would amend the 
proposal if necessary. 
 
In reply to questions from Commissioner Hart, Mr. Riegle said the fence along the median would 
be built in accordance with VDOT standards, citing Fairfax Boulevard in Arlington County as an 
example. He described the fence as consisting of low-maintenance metal. He said that he did not 
know if VDOT would perform any maintenance on the median fence if VDOT paid for it. 
 
Chairman Murphy called the first listed speaker and recited the rules for public testimony. 
 
Jube Shiver, Jr., 7959 Richmond Highway, Suite 11, Alexandria, representing Spring Garden 
Apartments, noted that Spring Garden was located across the highway from the proposed Costco 
store. He spoke in opposition to the proposal, citing the following concerns: 
 

1) The proposed use would adversely impact the use or development of neighboring 
properties. 
 

2) The infrastructure improvements would only benefit the applicant and not the 
surrounding residents. 
 

3) The Spring Garden residents would not be able to turn south onto Richmond Highway. 
 

4) Buses traveling south on Richmond Highway would not be able to make a U-turn to 
access Spring Garden. 
 

5) The tenants in the front row buildings at Spring Garden would lose their parking spaces 
or possibly their housing due to the plan to widen Richmond Highway. 
 

Mr. Shriver stated that the applicant did not contact him or the Spring Garden tenants until the 
public hearing was scheduled. He suggested that the County slow the process down and require 
the applicant to meet with neighboring residents, implement a less disruptive construction plan, 
and undertake road changes. 
 
Responding to questions from Commissioner Flanagan, Mr. Shiver clarified that he was 
representing 207 families from Spring Garden. He affirmed that he wanted the Commission to 
delay the decision on this proposal. 
 
In response to questions from Chairman Murphy, Mr. Shriver clarified that he had received a 
letter from Costco at the end of March notifying him of the proposal. He stated that the Spring  
 



8 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Garden Community did not interact with the Mount Vernon Council, which Chairman Murphy 
stated would have notified them since they conducted due diligence on land use proposals. 
 
Replying to questions from Commissioner Migliaccio, Ms. Goddard-Sobers said that staff had 
determined that Costco had met the requirements that Mr. Shriver mentioned. Ms. Hutchins 
affirmed that the County required that the applicant close the median. She noted that staff and 
VDOT would consider leaving the median open based on an analysis that showed the 
functionality of the area if it were left open. 
 
Commissioner Hall pointed out that information about the proposed development was available 
online and through notifications. She noted that most of the activity took place in the Lee District 
and not the Mount Vernon District. Mr. Shriver responded by saying that even if he had received 
notice, it would have taken time to inform the rest of his community. Commissioner Hall added 
that the County could not afford to mail notices to every resident in the surrounding community. 
 
In reply to questions from Commissioner Migliaccio, Mr. Shiver clarified that he was aware of 
rumors that Costco had purchased the property, but was not aware of the specifics of the 
development plan until he received the letter detailing the plan in late March 2011. He added that 
he did not live at the Spring Garden Apartment Complex. 
 
Responding to a question from Commissioner Sargeant, Ms. Hutchins said she would consult the 
applicant on a plan to deal with buses and large trucks. 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Hart, Mr. Shriver said that school buses currently 
drove to the apartment complex to drop off students, did not stop along Richmond Highway, and 
used the median break to access the complex. Commissioner Flanagan affirmed that the Fairfax 
County Public Schools’ Department of Facilities & Transportation Services did not allow buses 
to make U-turns. Mr. Shriver noted that fire trucks would likely travel down Sherwood Hall 
Lane and would have to make a U-turn if the proposed changes were implemented. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan stated that the Fairfax County Police Chief had indicated that left turns 
would be preferred to U-turns. 
 
Replying to questions from Commissioner Migliaccio, Ms. Hutchins said she did not know if 
VDOT would factor in the issues with school buses and fire trucks in determining how to address 
the median issue. She added that the primary issue with the median break for large vehicles 
would be getting out because they would have to cross both the southbound lane and maneuver 
around the northbound turn lanes.  
 
Commissioner Flanagan said that the Police Chief had also stated that he was not aware of any 
fatalities at the median break. He noted that farther down Route 235, U-turns were a significant 
hazard.  
 
 
 



9 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio clarified that the applicant could study the area around Ladson Lane 
across from Spring Garden to determine if there was a way to create a cut-out lane that would 
turn into the subject property with the aid of a traffic light. 
 
Chairman Murphy called for speakers from the audience. 
 
Ms. Mattie Palmore, 8104 Russell Road, Alexandria, spoke in opposition to the proposal because 
the New Gum Springs Civic Association and Spring Garden Apartments had not been contacted 
to discuss the proposal. She suggested that details of the proposal be explained to the 
community. 
 
Chairman Murphy noted that the Commission had received a letter dated April 19, 2011, from 
Queenie Cox, President of the New Gum Springs Civic Association, a copy of which is in the 
date file. Ms. Palmore stated that the community did not understand what would transpire as a 
result of this proposal.  
 
Commissioner Flanagan noted that the New Gum Springs Civic Association opposed the 
proposal and the Mount Vernon Council would vote on the proposal at the end of the month. 
 
Commissioner Hall noted that the Commission’s recommendation was not the end of the process 
and the Board of Supervisors still had to decide on the proposal. 
 
In reply to a question from Commissioner Migliaccio, Ms. Palmore confirmed that she was a 
member of the New Gum Springs Civic Association. 
 
There were no further speakers; therefore, Chairman Murphy called upon Mr. Riegle for rebuttal 
remarks. 
 
Mr. Riegle stated that Costco was willing to meet with anyone regarding the details of the 
application. He noted that Costco had approximately 20,000 members within a five-mile radius 
of the proposed site. Mr. Riegle said that Costco was willing to work with VDOT and the 
community to find a better solution to the median issue. He stated that the use of U-turns was not 
ideal. He said that Costco would accept an obligation to fund a study to determine the best course 
of action. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy stepped out at 9:52 p.m. and relinquished the Chair to Vice Chairman Alcorn. 
 
// 
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Sargeant, Mr. Riegle described the existing median. 
He said that the proposed changes to the median included the full double-lane stacking and 
provided a turn movement into Spring Garden Apartments, but the applicant could not move  



10 

SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
forward with construction without site plan approval from VDOT. He noted that there would be 
the same number of through lanes. Mr. Riegle said he did not know if school buses and fire  
trucks would be impacted by the current layout of the median. He stated that the applicant’s first 
meeting with the Mount Vernon Council was in December 2010 and he did not know if there 
were any representatives of New Gum Springs present or if anything had been published in a 
newsletter regarding the application. 
 
// 
 
Chairman Murphy returned at 9:56 p.m. and resumed the Chair. 
 
// 
 
Replying to a question from Commissioner Migliaccio, Mr. Riegle explained that the proposed 
traffic feasibility study to extend Ladson Lane into the Spring Garden Apartment Complex 
would also take the existing topography and parking into consideration. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan affirmed that the New Gum Springs Civic Association was not 
represented by the Mount Vernon Council. He stated that the applicant had not contacted the 
New Gum Springs Civic Association. He pointed out on a VDOT drawing the existing left-turn 
lane that was used by emergency vehicles. He stated that the school buses would turn left into the 
nearby Wal-Mart and exit the same way to avoid making a U-turn. He also noted that the 
proposal would transform the intersection at Ladsen Lane into a four-lane intersection. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant noted that the Mount Vernon Council had published a newsletter 
detailing the proposal, including the issues about the U-turn.  
 
In response to a question from Commissioner Hart, Regina Coyle, ZED, DPZ, said notification 
signage had been posted on the site for at least a week. Barbara Lippa, Executive Director, 
Planning Commission Office, verified that the right number of certified notification letters had 
been mailed to the correct addresses. 
 
Chairman Murphy noted that there was no perfect solution to notification issues, but suggested 
that Commissioners representing abutting districts work together to notify citizens. 
 
There were no further comments or questions from the Commission and staff had no further 
remarks; therefore, Chairman Murphy closed the public hearing and recognized Commissioner 
Migliaccio for action on this application. (A verbatim transcript is in the date file.) 
 
// 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF SE 2010-LE-025, SUBJECT TO THE 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS DATED APRIL 20, 2011, INCLUDING A 
DEVELOPMENT CONDITION REGARDING A TRAFFIC FEASIBILITY STUDY TO 



11 

 
SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
EXTEND LADSON LANE INTO THE APARTMENT COMPLEX, PAID FOR BY THE 
APPLICANT. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1, with Commissioner 
Flanagan abstaining; Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A WAIVER OF THE SERVICE 
DRIVE REQUIREMENT ALONG RICHMOND HIGHWAY. 
 
Commissioner Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING, BARRIER, AND PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT 
LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS ALONG THE EASTERN PROPERTY LINE, IN FAVOR 
OF THE VEGETATION AND BARRIER, AS SHOWN ON THE SE PLAT. 
 
Commissioners Sargeant and Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING AND PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING, AND 
A WAIVER OF THE BARRIER REQUIREMENTS ALONG THE SOUTHERN PROPERTY 
LINE, IN FAVOR OF THE VEGETATION SHOWN ON THE SE PLAT. 
 
Commissioners Sargeant and Alcorn seconded the motion which carried unanimously with 
Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
TRANSITIONAL SCREENING, BARRIER, AND PERIPHERAL PARKING LOT 
LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS TO THE WEST, IN FAVOR OF THE VEGETATION 
AND SEVEN-FOOT TALL WALL SHOWN ON THE SE PLAT. 
 
Commissioner Sargeant seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A MODIFICATION OF THE 
RICHMOND HIGHWAY CORRIDOR STREETSCAPE REQUIREMENTS ALONG 
RICHMOND HIGHWAY TO THAT SHOWN ON THE SE PLAT. 



12 

 
SE 2010-LE-025 – COSTCO WHOLESALE CORPORATION   April 20, 2011 
 
 
Commissioner Sargeant seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Migliaccio MOVED THAT THE PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMEND 
TO THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL OF A DEVIATION FROM THE TREE 
PRESERVATION TARGET REQUIREMENT IN CHAPTER 122 OF THE COUNTY CODE 
AND THE PFM.  
 
Commissioner Sargeant seconded the motion which carried unanimously with Commissioners 
Donahue and Lawrence absent from the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Flanagan proposed a follow-on motion that THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMEND THAT THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REQUEST THAT THE VIRGINIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION KEEP THE MEDIAN OPEN UNTIL THE 
FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR THE EXTENSION OF LADSON LANE WAS COMPLETE. 
 
Commissioners Migliaccio and Alcorn seconded the motion which carried by a vote of 9-0-1 
with Commissioner Sargeant abstaining; the Commissioners Donahue and Lawrence absent from 
the meeting. 
 
// 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:15 p.m. 
Peter F. Murphy, Jr., Chairman 
Suzanne F. Harsel, Secretary 
 
Audio and video recordings of this meeting are available at the Planning Commission Office, 
12000 Government Center Parkway, Suite 330, Fairfax, Virginia 22035. 

 
Meeting taken by: Jeanette Nord 
 
Minutes by: Jacob Caporaletti 
 
Approved on:  April 18, 2012 
   

 
           

Kara A. DeArrastia, Clerk to the 
          Fairfax County Planning Commission 


	COMMISSION MATTERS
	FSA-D96-50-2 – AT&T MOBILITY, 7305 Idylwood Drive

